

**CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

Twenty-~~First~~Second Revision Sheet No. 2-A  
 Canceling

WN U-3

~~Twentieth~~Twenty-First Revision Sheet No. 2-A

±

**TABLE OF CONTENTS**

<u>SCHEDULE</u>	<u>TITLE</u>	<u>SHEET NO.</u>	
200	Miscellaneous Charges.....	200	(T)
300	Residential Conservation Incentive Program .....	300	(T)
301	Low Income Weatherization Incentive Program .....	301	(T)
302	Commercial/Industrial Conservation Program .....	302	
303	Washington Energy Assistance Fund (WEAF) Program.....	303	
500	Municipal Taxes.....	500	(M)(T)
503	Residential Service .....	503	
504	General Commercial Service .....	504	
505	General Industrial Service .....	505	
511	Large Volume General Service .....	511	
570	Interruptible Service .....	570	-(T)
663	Distribution System Transportation Service .....	663	(M)

<u>SCHEDULE ADJUSTMENT</u>	<u>TITLE</u>	<u>SHEET NO.</u>	
581	Protected-Plus Excess Deferred Income Tax (EDIT) Reversals.....	581	(T)
582	Unprotected Excess Deferred Income Tax (EDIT) Reversals.....	582	(D)
583	<del>Temporary Federal Income Tax Rate Credit.....</del>	583	(M)
590	<u>Temporary Gas Cost Amortization .....</u>	<u>590</u>	(M)(N)
593	Washington Energy Assistance Fund (WEAF) Program Cost Recovery	593	(M)
594	Decoupling Mechanism Adjustment .....	594	
595	Temporary Technical Adjustment .....	595	
596	Conservation Program Adjustment.....	596	
597	Cost Recovery Mechanism (CRM) .....	597	(T)
			(T)

~~(M) refers to language now on Sheet No. 2 A that was previously on Sheet No. 2.~~

CNG/W~~1920-023-012~~

Issued ~~February-March 618, 201920~~

Effective for Service on and after

~~March-April 2920, 201920~~

**Issued by CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

By:

Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

**RULE 21  
DECOUPLING MECHANISM**

**PURPOSE:**

This Rule describes the revenue-per-Customer Decoupling Mechanism which annually applies a per therm credit or debit under Schedule 594, “Decoupling Mechanism Adjustment” to applicable Customers’ bills for the purpose of truing up the annual difference between Margin Revenues and the Authorized Margin Revenues per Customer served as herein defined.

**APPLICABILITY:**

This Rule is applicable to all Customers served on Schedules 503, 504, 505, 511, and 570.

**MARGIN REVENUES**

Margin Revenue is the amount of Margin billed in a billing month, adjusted for unbilled margin revenues. Margin Revenue does not include amounts billed for the Basic Customer Charge, or adjustment schedules, such as Schedules 500, 581, 582, ~~583~~590, 593, 594, 595, 596, 597, and 598.

(D)(N)

**AUTHORIZED MARGIN REVENUE PER CUSTOMER**

The Authorized Margin per month per customer is established in the tables below. Table 1 shows January through June, and Table 2 shows July through December.

Table 1	Jan	Feb	March	April	May	June
503	\$36.58	\$28.65	\$23.32	\$16.03	\$9.60	\$6.12
504	\$148.36	\$123.57	\$89.98	\$67.79	\$38.59	\$34.00
505	\$565.59	\$451.20	\$500.28	\$392.85	\$285.11	\$211.79
511	\$3382.36	\$2337.78	\$2748.69	\$2313.98	\$1766.10	\$1260.22
570	\$1816.61	\$1751.83	\$1704.64	\$1691.42	\$1409.17	\$1017.37
Table 2	July	Aug	Sept	Oct	Nov	Dec
503	\$4.71	\$2.31	\$6.65	\$14.25	\$28.47	\$36.42
504	\$28.24	\$15.79	\$38.63	\$67.99	\$111.08	\$147.59
505	\$187.39	\$198.78	\$227.75	\$364.68	\$347.50	\$516.03
511	\$1091.85	\$1103.29	\$1039.90	\$1756.12	\$1618.05	\$2797.77
570	\$815.98	\$872.94	\$739.59	\$939.58	\$1565.97	\$1723.93

(E)

(E)

(Continued)

**CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

~~Substitute Sixty-First~~ Revision Revised Sheet No. 503

Canceling

WN U-3

~~Sixtieth-Substitute Sixty-First~~ Revision Sheet No. 503

RESIDENTIAL SERVICE RATE  
SCHEDULE NO. 503

AVAILABILITY:

This schedule is available to residential customers throughout the territory served by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part for natural gas supplied for all purposes provided adequate capacity and supply exist in the Company's system. Service under this schedule shall be through one or more meters, billed separately.

RATE:

	Margin	WACOG	Total	
Basic Service Charge			\$ 5.00	per month
All Gas Used Per Month	\$0.31073	\$ 0.495693833	\$0.80642-74906	per therm (R)

RATE ADJUSTMENT:

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments as specified in Schedules 581, 582, ~~583590~~, 593, 594, 595, 596, and 597 (when applicable) as well as any other applicable adjustments as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. (C)

MINIMUM CHARGE:

Basic Service Charge: \$ 5.00 per month

TERMS OF PAYMENT:

Above rates are net. Each monthly bill shall be due and payable within ~~fifteen-twenty-two~~ (+522) days from the date of rendition. Past due balances ~~will beare~~ subject to a late payment charge(s) per Rule 6. (C)  
(C)

RECONNECTION CHARGE:

A reconnection charge of twenty-four dollars (\$24.00) during regular business hours or sixty dollars (\$60.00) during non-business hours may be made for restoration of service when service has been turned off for nonpayment of any bill due, seasonal turnoff, or for other reasons arising through the action of the customer.

TAX ADDITIONS:

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500, entitled "Tax Additions".

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. The application of this rate schedule is subject to the General Rules and Regulations of the Company as they may be in effect from time to time and as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission.
2. Gas purchased under this schedule shall not be submetered or resold to others without special permission from the Company.

CNG/W20-023-0+2

Effective for Service on and after

Issued ~~February-March~~ 138, 2020

~~March-April~~ +20, 2020

Issued by **CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

By: Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

**CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

~~Substitute~~Forty-Fifth ~~Revision~~Revised Sheet No. 504

Canceling

WN U-3

~~Substitute~~Forty-Fourth~~h~~ifth Revision Sheet No. 504

GENERAL COMMERCIAL SERVICE RATE  
SCHEDULE NO. 504

AVAILABILITY:

This schedule is available to commercial customers throughout the territory served by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part for natural gas supplied for all purposes provided adequate capacity and supply exist in the Company's system. Service under this schedule may be through one or more meters, billed separately.

RATE:

	Margin	WACOG	Total	
Basic Service Charge			\$13.00	per month
All Therms Used	\$0.26180	\$0. <del>493044</del> <u>3558</u>	\$0. <del>754846</del> <u>9738</u>	per therm <span style="float:right">(H)</span>

RATE ADJUSTMENT:

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments as specified in Schedules 581, 582, ~~583~~590, 593, 594, 595, 596, and 597 (when applicable) as well as any other applicable adjustments as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. (C)

MINIMUM CHARGE:

Basic Service Charge \$13.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT:

Above rates are net. Each monthly bill shall be due and payable within ~~fifteen~~twenty-two (~~15~~22) days from the date of rendition. Past due balances ~~will bear~~ subject to a late payment charge(s) per Rule 6. (C)

RECONNECTION CHARGE:

A reconnection charge of twenty-four dollars (\$24.00) during regular business hours or sixty dollars (\$60.00) during non-business hours may be made for restoration of service when service has been turned off for nonpayment of any bill due, seasonal turnoff, or for other reasons arising through the action of the customer.

TAX ADDITIONS:

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500, entitled "Tax Additions".

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. The application of this rate schedule is subject to the General Rules and Regulations of the Company as they may be in effect from time to time and as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission.
2. Gas purchased under this schedule shall not be submetered or resold to others without special permission from the Company.

CNG/W20-023-012

Effective for Service on and after

Issued ~~February~~March 13~~8~~, 2020

~~March~~April 1~~20~~, 2020

Issued by **CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

By: Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

~~Substitute~~ Forty-Fourth ~~Revision~~ Revised Sheet No.

505

Canceling

WN U-3

Substitute Forty-~~Third~~Fourth Revision Sheet No. 505

GENERAL INDUSTRIAL SERVICE RATE  
SCHEDULE NO. 505

AVAILABILITY:

This schedule is available to industrial customers throughout the territory served by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part for natural gas supplied for all purposes provided adequate capacity and supply exist in the Company's system. Service under this schedule shall be through one or more meters, billed separately.

RATE:

	Margin	WACOG	Total	
Basic Service Charge			\$60.00	per month
First 500 therms/month	\$0.20176	<del>\$0.47993</del> <u>42196</u>	<del>\$0.68169</del> <u>62372</u>	per therm (FM)
Next 3,500 therms/month	\$0.16481	<del>\$0.47993</del> <u>42196</u>	<del>\$0.64474</del> <u>58677</u>	per therm (FM)
All over 4,000 therms/month	\$0.15923	<del>\$0.47993</del> <u>42196</u>	<del>\$0.63916</del> <u>58119</u>	per therm (FM)

RATE ADJUSTMENT:

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments as specified in Schedules 581, 582, ~~583~~ 590, 593, 594, 595, 596, and 597 (when applicable) as well as any other applicable adjustments as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. (C)

MINIMUM CHARGE:

Basic Service Charge \$60.00

TERMS OF PAYMENT:

Above rates are net. Each monthly bill shall be due and payable within ~~fifteen~~ twenty-two (~~15~~ 22) days from the date of rendition. Past due balances ~~will be~~ are subject to a late payment charge(s) per Rule 6. (C)

RECONNECTION CHARGE:

A reconnection charge of twenty-four dollars (\$24.00) during regular business hours or sixty dollars (\$60.00) during non-business hours may be made for restoration of service when service has been turned off for nonpayment of any bill due, seasonal turnoff, or for other reasons arising through the action of the customer.

TAX ADDITIONS:

The rates names herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500 entitled "Tax Additions".

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. The application of this rate schedule is subject to the General Rules and Regulations of the Company as they may be in effect from time to time and as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission.
2. Gas purchased under this schedule shall not be submetered or resold to others without special permission from the Company.

CNG/W20-023-012

Effective for Service on and after

Issued ~~February~~ March ~~13~~ 18, 2020

~~March~~ April ~~1~~ 20, 2020

Issued by CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

By: Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

~~Substitute Sixty-Second~~ Revision Revised Sheet No.

511

Canceling

WN U-3

Substitute Sixty-First-Second Revision Sheet No. 511

SCHEDULE 511  
LARGE VOLUME GENERAL SERVICE

**AVAILABILITY:**

This schedule is available to customers throughout the territory served by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part provided adequate capacity and supply exist in the Company's system. Service under this schedule shall be for natural gas supplied for all purposes to customers having an annual fuel requirement of not less than 50,000 therms.

**RATE:**

	Margin	WACOG	Total	
Basic Service Charge			\$125.00	per month
First 20,000 therms/month	\$0.16113	\$0. <del>47993</del> <u>42196</u>	\$0. <del>64106</del> <u>58309</u>	per therm (M)
Next 80,000 therms/month	\$0.12471	\$0. <del>47993</del> <u>42196</u>	\$0. <del>60464</del> <u>54667</u>	per therm (M)
All over 100,000 therms/month	\$0.03464	\$0. <del>47993</del> <u>42196</u>	\$0. <del>51457</del> <u>45660</u>	per therm (M)

**RATE ADJUSTMENT:**

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments as specified in Schedules 581, 582, ~~583~~ 590, 593, 594, 595, 596, and 597 (when applicable) as well as any other applicable adjustments as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. (C)

**SERVICE AGREEMENT:**

Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall execute a service agreement for an Annual Minimum Quantity of 50,000 therms a year.

**ANNUAL DEFICIENCY BILL:**

In the event customer purchases less than the Annual Minimum Quantity as stated in the service agreement, customer shall be charged an Annual Deficiency Bill. The annual Deficiency Bill shall be calculated as the difference between the Annual Minimum Quantity and the actual purchase or transport therms times per therm rates in this schedule except WACOG plus all per therm rates for all adjustment schedules that would apply to service procured under this rate schedule.

**TERMS OF PAYMENT:**

Each monthly bill shall be due and payable within ~~fifteen~~ twenty-two (~~15~~ 22) days from the date of rendition. Past due balances ~~will bear~~ subject to a late payment charge(s) per Rule 6. (C)

**TAX ADDITIONS:**

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500, Municipal Taxes.

**GENERAL TERMS:**

Service under this rate schedule is governed by the terms of this schedule, the Rules contained in this Tariff, any other schedules that by their terms or by the terms of this rate schedule apply to service under this rate schedule, and by all rules and regulations prescribed by regulatory authorities, as amended from time to time.

CNG/W20-023-0~~1~~2

Effective for Service on and after

Issued ~~February~~ March ~~13~~ 18, 2020

~~March~~ April ~~1~~ 20, 2020

Issued by CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

By: Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

~~Substitute Fifty-Sixth~~ Revision Revised Sheet No. 570

Canceling

WN U-3

Substitute Fifty-Fifth~~Sixth~~ Revision Sheet No. 570

**SCHEDULE. 570  
INTERRUPTIBLE SERVICE**

**AVAILABILITY:**

This schedule is available throughout the territory served by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part provided adequate capacity and supply exist in Company's system. Service under this schedule shall be for natural gas delivered for all purposes to customers having an annual fuel requirement of not less than 50,000 therms per year, which shall include all firm gas delivered, if any, and where customer agrees to maintain standby fuel burning facilities and an adequate supply of standby fuel to replace the entire supply of natural gas delivered hereunder. Service under this schedule shall be subject to curtailment by the Company when, in the judgment of the Company, such curtailment or interruption of service is necessary. Company shall not be liable for damages for, or because of, any curtailment of natural gas deliveries hereunder.

**RATE:**

	Margin	WACOG	Total	
Basic Service Charge			\$163.00	per month
First 30,000 therms/month	\$0.08964	\$0. <del>46687</del> <u>40840</u>	\$0. <del>55651</del> <u>49804</u>	per therm (R)
All over 30,000 therms/month	\$0.02817	\$0. <del>46687</del> <u>40840</u>	\$0. <del>49504</del> <u>43657</u>	per therm (R)

**RATE ADJUSTMENT:**

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments as specified in Schedules 581, 582, ~~583~~590, 593, 594, 595, 596, and 597 (when applicable) as well as any other applicable adjustments as approved by the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission. (C)

**ANNUAL DEFICIENCY BILL:**

In the event customer purchases less than the Annual Minimum Quantity as stated in the service agreement, customer shall be charged an Annual Deficiency Bill. Annual Deficiency Bill shall be calculated as the difference between the Annual Minimum Quantity and the actual purchase or transport therms times per therm rates in this schedule except WACOG plus all per therm rates for all adjustment schedules that would apply to service procured under this rate schedule.

**SERVICE AGREEMENT:**

Customers receiving service under this rate schedule shall execute a service agreement for an Annual Minimum Quantity of 50,000 therms a year.

**TERMS OF PAYMENT:**

Each monthly bill shall be due and payable within ~~fifteen~~twenty-two (~~15~~22) days from the date of rendition. Past due balances ~~will bear~~ subject to a late payment charge(s) per Rule 6. (C)

**TAX ADDITIONS:**

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500, Municipal Taxes.

**GENERAL TERMS:**

Service under this rate schedule is governed by the terms of this schedule, the Rules contained in this Tariff, any other schedules that by their terms or by the terms of this rate schedule apply to service under this rate schedule, and by all rules and regulations prescribed by regulatory authorities, as amended from time to time.

(M) text was previously found on Sheet 570-A.

CNG/W20-023-012

Issued ~~February~~ March 138, 2020

Effective for Service on and after

~~March~~ April 120, 2020

Issued by CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION

By: Michael Parvinen

Director, Regulatory Affairs

**CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

~~Substitute Thirty-Ninth~~Fortieth Revision Sheet No. 595

Canceling

WN U-3

~~Substitute Thirty-Eighth~~Ninth Revision Sheet No. 595

**SCHEDULE NO. 595  
TEMPORARY TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENT**

**APPLICABLE:**

This adjustment applies to gas service rendered by the Company under the tariff of which this schedule is a part for service on and after the effective date hereof and shall be in addition to all rates and charges specified in this tariff.

**MONTHLY RATES AND MINIMUM BILLS:**

Each of the charges, except Demand and Customer Service Charges, of Schedule Nos. 505 and 511 are to be decreased by \$0.00 per therm and \$0.00 per therm or an appropriate multiple thereof respectively. (R)

Each of the charges, except Demand and Customer Service Charges, of the following Schedule Nos. are to be decreased as follows: 503 by \$0.00 per therm, 504 by \$0.00 per therm and or an appropriate multiple thereof. (R)

Each of the charges of Schedule Nos. 570 are to be increased by \$0.00 per therm or an appropriate multiple thereof. (R)

The commodity rates charged under Schedule Nos. 685 and 686 are to be decreased by \$0.0000 per therm or an appropriate multiple thereof.

The delivery charge under Schedule No. 663 is to be decreased by (\$0.00000).

**SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS:**

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule No. 500, Municipal Taxes.

**WEIGHTED AVERAGE COST OF GAS (WACOG):**

Each of the charges, except Demand and Customer Service Charges, are to be decreased by:

Schedule Nos.	Commodity Change per therm	Demand Change per therm	Total Rate Change	
503	<del>(\$0.06413)</del> 0	\$0.00 <del>677</del>	<del>(\$0.05736)</del> 0	(K)
504	<del>\$0.00(\$0.06413)</del>	\$0.00 <del>667</del>	<del>(\$0.05746)</del> 0	
505, 511	<del>\$0.00(\$0.06413)</del>	\$0.00 <del>616</del>	<del>(\$0.05797)</del> 0	
570	<del>\$0.00(\$0.06413)</del>	\$0.00 <del>566</del>	<del>(\$0.05847)</del> 0	(K)

[\(K\) Prior rates zeroed and merged with WACOG rates on Schedules 503, 504, 505, 511, and 570.](#)

CNG/W~~1920-093-012~~

Issued ~~September~~March 138, 20~~1920~~

**Issued by CASCADE NATURAL GAS CORPORATION**

By: Michael Parvinen

Effective for Service on and after

~~November~~April 120, 20~~1920~~

Director, Regulatory Affairs



**SCHEDULE 663  
DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM TRANSPORTATION SERVICE**

(Continued from Previous Page)

**Rates (continued):**

D. Delivery Charge for all therms delivered per month

	<b>Margin</b>
First 100,000	\$0.05989
100,001-200,000	\$0.02303
200,001-500,000	\$0.01473
>500,000	\$0.00798

(+)  
(+)  
(+)  
(+)

E. Gross Revenue Fee:

The total of all charges shall be subject to a Gross Revenue Fee of 4.362% to cover state utility tax and other governmental levies imposed upon the Company.

(R)

F. Fuel Use Requirements:

Customers served on Schedule 663 shall provide the Company with in-kind fuel for lost and unaccounted for gas on the Company's distribution system. The fuel use factor is 0.2479%.

(+)

All other terms and conditions of service shall be pursuant to the rules and regulations set forth in this Tariff.

**RATE ADJUSTMENTS:**

Service under this schedule is subject to various adjustments including Schedules 581, 582, ~~583~~90, 593, 594, 595, 596 and 597.

(C)

**TAX ADDITIONS:**

The rates named herein are subject to increases as set forth in Schedule 500, Municipal Taxes.

(continued)

(D)

~~(M) refers to language on Sheet No. 663-A that was previously on Sheet No. 663.~~